KEITHLEY INSTRUMENTS INC Form DEF 14A December 22, 2004

SCHEDULE 14A (RULE 14a-101)

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN PROXY STATEMENT

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

PROXY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 14(a) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

File	ed by the R	egistrant þ
File	d by a Part	ty other than the Registrant o
Che	eck the app	propriate box:
o C þ D o D	Confidentia Definitive P Definitive A	Proxy Statement II, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2)) Proxy Statement Additional Materials Material Pursuant to Section 240.14a-11c or Section 240.14a-12
		KEITHLEY INSTRUMENTS, INC.
		(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)
		(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement)
Pay	ment of Fi	ling Fee (Check the appropriate box):
þ	No fee ro	equired.
o	Fee com	puted on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
	(1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
	(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
	(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
	(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
	(5)	Total fee paid:

o Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee

(1)	Amount Previously Paid:
(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
(3)	Filing Party:
(4)	Date Filed:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KEITHLEY INSTRUMENTS, INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

PROXY STATEMENT

GENERAL INFORMATION

VOTING RIGHTS

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

INFORMATION REGARDING MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CODE OF ETHICS

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND RELATED INFORMATION

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

OPTION GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR AND FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUES

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

COMPANY STOCK PERFORMANCE

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN* AMONG KEITHLEY INSTRUMENTS, INC., THE

RUSSELL 2000 INDEX AND THE S & P TECHNOLOGY COMPOSITE INDEX

OTHER MATTERS

Keithley Instruments, Inc.

28775 Aurora Road Cleveland, Ohio 44139-1891 440-248-0400 Fax: 440-248-6168 http://www.keithley.com

December 22, 2004

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KEITHLEY INSTRUMENTS, INC.

This year s Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Keithley Instruments, Inc. will be held at 12:00 Noon (EST), Saturday, February 12, 2005, at our corporate headquarters, 28775 Aurora Road, Cleveland, Ohio.

In addition to acting on the matters outlined in the Proxy Statement, we look forward to giving you a progress report on the first quarter, which will end on December 31, 2004. As in the past, there will be an informal presentation on the Company s business.

We hope that you are planning to attend the Annual Meeting personally, and we look forward to seeing you. Whether or not you expect to attend in person, the return of the enclosed proxy as soon as possible would be greatly appreciated and will ensure that your shares will be represented at the Annual Meeting. If you do attend the Annual Meeting, you may revoke your proxy should you wish to vote in person.

On behalf of the Directors and management of Keithley Instruments, Inc., we would like to thank you for your continued support and confidence in the Company.

Sincerely yours,

/s/ Joseph P. Keithley JOSEPH P. KEITHLEY

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Keithley Instruments, Inc.

28775 Aurora Road Cleveland, Ohio 44139-1891 440-248-0400 Fax: 440-248-6168 http://www.keithley.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Keithley Instruments, Inc. will be held at the Company s corporate headquarters, 28775 Aurora Road, Cleveland, Ohio, on Saturday, February 12, 2005, at 12:00 Noon (EST), for the following purposes:

- (1) To elect eight members of the Board of Directors to serve until the next annual meeting of shareholders and until their successors have been duly elected and qualified; and
- (2) To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

 Only holders of Common Shares and Class B Common Shares of record at the close of business on Tuesday, December 14, 2004, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ John M. Gherlein JOHN M. GHERLEIN Secretary

December 22, 2004

Please sign, date and return the enclosed proxy promptly.

A return envelope is enclosed for your convenience.

KEITHLEY INSTRUMENTS, INC.

28775 Aurora Road

Cleveland, Ohio 44139

PROXY STATEMENT

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON FEBRUARY 12, 2005

GENERAL INFORMATION

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Keithley Instruments, Inc. (the Company) for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company to be held on February 12, 2005, and any adjournment or postponement thereof. The time, place and purposes of the Annual Meeting are stated in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders which accompanies this Proxy Statement.

The solicitation of proxies is made by and on behalf of the Board of Directors. The expense of soliciting proxies, including the cost of preparing, assembling and mailing the proxy materials, will be borne by the Company. In addition to solicitation of proxies by mail, solicitation may be made personally and by telephone, and the Company may pay persons holding shares for others their expenses for sending proxy materials to their principals. No solicitation will be made other than by Directors, officers and employees of the Company.

The presence of a shareholder at the Annual Meeting will not operate to revoke the shareholder s proxy. Any shareholder giving a proxy pursuant to this solicitation may revoke it by giving notice to the Company in writing or in open meeting. All properly executed proxies received by the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to this solicitation will be voted at the Annual Meeting, in accordance with the directions contained in such proxies. If no directions are given, properly executed proxies will be voted FOR the election of the nominees named in this Proxy Statement and with discretionary authority to vote on all other matters that may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The close of business on December 14, 2004 has been fixed as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting. This Proxy Statement and the accompanying President's letter, notice and proxy, together with the Company's annual report to shareholders for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, are first being sent to shareholders on or about December 22, 2004.

VOTING RIGHTS

As of the close of business on December 14, 2004, there were outstanding 14,092,157 Common Shares, without par value, of the Company (Common Shares) and 2,150,502 Class B Common Shares, without par value, of the Company (Class B Common Shares). The holders of outstanding Common Shares on that date will be entitled to one vote for each share held, and the holders of outstanding Class B Common Shares on that date will be entitled to ten votes for each share held. Proxies received by the Company but marked as abstentions or broker non-votes will not count in favor of, or against, election of a nominee for Director.

The Ohio Revised Code, as it applies to the Company, provides that if notice in writing is given by any shareholder to the President, a Vice President or the Secretary of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting that such shareholder desires the voting to elect Directors to be cumulative, and if an announcement of the giving of such notice is made upon the convening of the meeting by the Chairman or the Secretary or by or on behalf of the shareholder giving such notice, then each shareholder shall have cumulative voting rights in the election of Directors, enabling such shareholder to give one nominee for Director as many votes as is equal to the number of Directors to be elected multiplied by the number of shares in respect of which such shareholder is voting, or to distribute votes on the same principle among two or more nominees, as such shareholder sees fit. If cumulative voting is in effect, the persons named in the proxy will vote shares represented thereby so as to elect as many of the eight nominees named herein as possible.

Table of Contents

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following persons are known to the Company to be the beneficial owners of more than 5% of the voting securities of the Company as of December 14, 2004:

	Common Sha	res	Class B Common Shares(1)			
Name of Beneficial Owner	Number of Shares Beneficially Owned	Percent of Class	Number of Shares Beneficially Owned	Percent of Class	Percentage of Total Voting Power	
Joseph P. Keithley	334,386(2)	2.3%	2,130,878(3)	99.1%	60.3%	
Barclays Global Investors, N.A. (4)	1,135,735	8.1%			3.2%	
The TCW Group, Inc. (5)	927,409	6.6%			2.6%	

- (1) Pursuant to the Company s Amended Articles of Incorporation, all holders of Class B Common Shares are entitled to convert any or all of their Class B Common Shares into Common Shares at any time, on a share-for-share basis.
- (2) Includes Common Shares represented by options exercisable on or before February 12, 2005, by Joseph P. Keithley (281,500 shares). Such shares are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of shares outstanding owned by Mr. Keithley and his percentage of total voting power of the Company s capital stock, but are not deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of shares held by or total voting power of any other person. Also includes 8,176 shares of restricted stock that are subject to certain vesting requirements and 2,448 shares owned by Mr. Keithley s wife. Mr. Keithley disclaims beneficial ownership with respect to the shares owned by his wife.
- (3) Includes 1,954,816 shares owned by a partnership of which Mr. Keithley serves as the general partner, and 46,062 shares owned by a trust of which Mr. Keithley serves as the trustee.
- (4) Derived from information set forth on a Schedule 13G of Barclays Global Investors, N.A. dated February 13, 2004.
- (5) Derived from information set forth on a Schedule 13G of The TCW Group, Inc. dated February 4, 2004.

The business address of Mr. Keithley is 28775 Aurora Road, Cleveland, Ohio 44139. The address for Barclays Global Investors, N.A. is 45 Fremont Street, San Francisco, California 94105. The address for The TCW Group, Inc. is 865 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, California 90017.

Security Ownership of Management

The beneficial ownership of Common Shares and Class B Common Shares by each of the Company s Directors, nominees for Director, each of the Company s executive officers named in the Summary

2

Table of Contents

Compensation Table and by all executive officers and Directors of the Company as a group on December 14, 2004, is set forth in the table below:

_	Common Shar	res	Class B Common Shares(1)		
Name of Beneficial Owner	Number of Shares Beneficially Owned(2)	Percent of Class	Number of Shares Beneficially Owned	Percent of Class	Percentage of Total Voting Power
Brian R. Bachman	68,078	*			*
James T. Bartlett	77,042	*			*
James B. Griswold	57,046	*			*
Leon J. Hendrix, Jr.	108,430	*			*
William J. Hudson, Jr.	68,020	*			*
Joseph P. Keithley	334,386(3)	2.3%	2,130,878(4)	99.1%	60.3%
Dr. N. Mohan Reddy	39,320	*			*
Barbara V. Scherer					
R. Elton White	57,130	*			*
John A. Pesec	68,834(5)	*			*
Mark J. Plush	121,312(6)	*			*
Linda C. Rae	52,876	*			*
Gabriel A. Rosica	159,330	1.1%			*
All executive officers and Directors as a group					
(18 persons)	1,448,337	9.5%	2,130,878	99.1%	62.0%

^{*} Less than 1%

- (1) Pursuant to the Company s Amended Articles of Incorporation, all holders of Class B Common Shares are entitled to convert any or all of their Class B Common Shares into Common Shares at any time, on a share-for-share basis.
- (2) Includes Common Shares represented by options exercisable on or before February 12, 2005 by Brian R. Bachman (50,000 shares), James T. Bartlett (50,000 shares), James B. Griswold (30,000 shares), Leon J. Hendrix, Jr. (70,000 shares), William J. Hudson, Jr. (40,000 shares), Joseph P. Keithley (281,500 shares), Dr. N. Mohan Reddy (35,000 shares), R. Elton White (30,000 shares), John A. Pesec (63,250 shares), Mark J. Plush (81,704 shares), Linda C. Rae (52,250 shares), Gabriel A. Rosica (157,500 shares) and all officers and Directors as a group (1,126,404 shares). Such shares are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of shares outstanding owned by each of the individuals and all officers and Directors as a group and their percentage of total voting power of the Company s capital stock, respectively, but are not deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of shares held by or total voting power of any other person. Also includes restricted shares that are subject to certain vesting requirements for Mr. Keithley (8,176 shares), Mr. Plush (8,104 shares), and all officers and Directors as a group (40,342). Includes shares held under the Keithley Instruments, Inc. 1996 Outside Directors Deferred Stock Plan for the benefit of Mr. Bachman (17,078 shares), Mr. Bartlett (27,042 shares), Mr. Griswold (27,046 shares), Mr. Hendrix (28,430 shares), Mr. Hudson (8,020 shares), Dr. Reddy (4,320), Mr. White (27,130 shares) and Mr. Rosica (1,834 shares), as to which such persons do not have current voting rights.
- (3) Includes 2,448 shares owned by Mr. Keithley s wife. Mr. Keithley disclaims beneficial ownership with respect to the shares owned by his wife.
- (4) Includes 1,954,816 shares owned by a partnership of which Mr. Keithley serves as the general partner, and 46,062 shares owned by a trust of which Mr. Keithley serves as the trustee.
- (5) Includes nine shares owned by Mr. Pesec s wife. Mr. Pesec disclaims beneficial ownership with respect to the shares owned by his wife.

1

Table of Contents

(6) Includes 1,240 shares owned by Mr. Plush s son and 33,588 Common Shares represented by options exercisable on or before February 12, 2005 for Mr. Plush s former wife. Mr. Plush may exercise the options solely upon the direction of his former wife who is entitled to the shares issued upon exercise. Mr. Plush disclaims beneficial ownership with respect to the options held for the benefit of his former wife.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Keithley s executive officers, Directors and persons who own more than 10% of Keithley s common shares to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These persons are required to provide the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms that they file. Based solely on the Company s review of these forms and written representations from the executive officers and Directors, the Company believes that all Section 16(a) filing requirements were met during fiscal year 2004.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

At the Annual Meeting, or any adjournment or postponement thereof, Common Shares and Class B Common Shares represented by proxies, unless otherwise specified, will be voted for the election as Directors of the eight persons named below who have been nominated by the Board of Directors following the recommendation of the Board s Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. If the eight nominees are elected, there will be one vacancy on the Board. The Directors may fill that vacancy at their discretion. The Company believes it is desirable to have the vacancy available to be filled by the Directors if a person who could make a valuable contribution as a Director becomes available during the year.

Each of the Directors to be elected at the meeting is to serve until the next Annual Meeting and until his successor shall have been duly elected and qualified. Pursuant to the Company s Amended Articles of Incorporation (the Articles), one-fourth (calculated to the nearest whole number) of the number of authorized Directors, which equals two Directors, is entitled to be elected by the Common Shares voting separately as a class. Messrs. Bartlett and Hendrix have been nominated as the Directors to be so elected by the holders of the Common Shares of the Company. The remaining six nominees are to be elected by the holders of the Common Shares and the Class B Common Shares voting together. The two nominees receiving the greatest number of votes of the Common Shares voting separately as a class, and the six other nominees receiving the greatest number of votes of the Common Shares and the Class B Common Shares voting together without regard to class, will be elected as Directors.

Each of the nominees is presently a member of the Board of Directors and each has indicated his willingness to serve as a Director, if elected. If any nominee at the time of election is unable or unwilling to serve or is otherwise unavailable for election (which contingency is not now contemplated or foreseen), it is intended that the shares represented by proxies will be voted for the election of any substitute nominee that may be named by the Board of Directors.

4

Table of Contents

Nominees for Election

Set forth below is certain information, as of December 14, 2004, with respect to each person nominated for election as a Director.

Name and Age of Nominee	Business Experience	Director Since	
Joseph P. Keithley Age 55	Chairman of the Board of the Company since 1991, Chief Executive Officer since November 1993 and President since May 1994. Director of Brush Engineered Materials Inc., which through its subsidiaries supplies beryllium-containing products and other engineered materials for end-use applications within the worldwide telecommunications and computer, automotive electronics, industrial components, optical media, aerospace, defense and appliance markets, and Director of Nordson Corporation, a worldwide producer of precision dispensing equipment and manufacturer of technology-based systems for curing and surface treatment processes.	1986	
Brian R. Bachman Age 59	Private Investor. Former Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of Axcelis Technologies, a worldwide producer of ion implantation, dry strip and photostabilization equipment used in the fabrication of semiconductors, from 2000 to 2002. Senior Vice President and Group Executive of Semiconductor Equipment and Specialty Controls of Eaton Corporation from 1996 to 2000. Vice President of Standard Products Business Group of Philips Semiconductor, a worldwide semiconductor manufacturer for Philips Electronics N.V. from 1991 through 1995. Director of Kulicke and Soffa Industries Inc., a leading supplier of wire bonding equipment in the semiconductor assembly market, and Director of Ultra Clean Technologies, a developer and supplier of critical subsystems for the semiconductor capital equipment industry, focusing on gas delivery systems.	1996	
James T. Bartlett (1) Age 67	Advising Director since 2002, and Managing Director from 1986 to 2002, of Primus Venture Partners Inc., the manager of Primus Capital Fund and Primus Capital Funds II, III, IV and V, venture capital limited partnerships. Director of Oglebay Norton Company, a provider of products and services to oil field services, chemical, steel and construction industries, and Lamson & Sessions Co., a provider of products for the construction and telecommunications industries.	1983	
	5		

Table of Contents

Name and Age of Nominee	Business Experience	Director Since	
James B. Griswold (2) Age 58	Partner in the law firm of Baker & Hostetler LLP since 1982 concentrating in the areas of mergers and acquisitions, venture capital, financing business negotiations, and assisting entrepreneurs and high-growth companies.		
Leon J. Hendrix, Jr. (1) Age 63	Chairman of the Board of Remington Arms Co. since 1997, a manufacturer and marketer of firearms and ammunition. Principal, Clayton, Dubilier & Rice, Inc., a private investment firm, from 1993 to 2000. Chief Operating Officer of Reliance Electric Company from 1992 to 1993, Executive Vice President of Reliance from 1989 to 1992 and Vice President of Corporate Development of Reliance from 1987 to 1989. Reliance Electric is now a part of Rockwell Automation, a worldwide provider of industrial automation power, control and information solutions. Director of NACCO Industries, Inc., a holding company with subsidiaries that manufacture lift trucks and household electrical appliances, mine and market lignite coal and operate specialty retail stores, and Director of Cambrex Corp., a provider of products and services to the life sciences industries. Chairman of Clemson University Board of Trustees.	1990	
Dr. N. Mohan Reddy Age 51	Associate Professor of Marketing since 1991 and Keithley Professor of Technology Management since 1996 at the Weatherhead School of Management, Case Western Reserve University. Consultant to firms in the electronics, semi-conductor and telecommunications industries on commercializing new technologies and marketing strategy implementation. Director of Brush Engineered Materials, Inc., which through its subsidiaries supplies beryllium-containing products and other engineered materials for end-use applications within the worldwide telecommunications and computer, automotive electronics, industrial components, optical media, aerospace, defense and appliance markets.	2001	
	6		

Table of Contents

Name and Age of Nominee	Business Experience	Director Since	
Barbara V. Scherer Age 48	Senior Vice President Finance & Administration and Chief Financial Officer of Plantronics, Inc. since 1998. Vice President Finance & Administration and Chief Financial Officer from 1997 to 1998. Plantronics is the leading provider of headsets to telephone companies and the business community worldwide. Prior to joining Plantronics, Ms. Scherer held various executive management positions spanning eleven years in the disk drive industry, was a consultant with The Boston Consulting Group and was a member of the corporate finance team at ARCO.	2004	
R. Elton White Age 62	Private Investor. President of NCR Corporation from 1991 to 1993, Executive Vice President of Marketing of NCR from 1990 to 1991, and Executive Vice President of the United States Group from 1987 to 1990. Director of Kohl s Corporation, which owns specialty department stores.	1994	

- (1) Elected by holders of Common Shares only.
- (2) Baker & Hostetler LLP served as general outside legal counsel to the Company during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 and is expected to render services in such capacity to the Company in the future.

INFORMATION REGARDING MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors held five meetings during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. During that fiscal year, no Director attended fewer than 75% of the aggregate of (i) the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors (ii) the total number of meetings held by committees of the Board during the period that he or she served as a Director.

The Company has not established a formal policy regarding director attendance at the Company s annual meeting of shareholders. However, the annual meeting has generally been scheduled on the same day as a regular board meeting. All of the Company s Directors attended the 2004 annual shareholders meeting.

The Company has five standing committees: the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Compensation and Human Resources Committee, the Strategy Committee, and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Each of these committees has a written charter approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has also adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines. A copy of the charters for the Audit Committee, Compensation and Human Resources Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and the Corporate Governance Guidelines can be found under the Investor Relations section of our website at www.keithley.com and are also available in print to any shareholder who submits a request to the Company c/o Marcia Parker, Keithley Instruments, Inc., 28775 Aurora Road, Cleveland, Ohio 44139. Additionally, a copy of the charter for the Audit Committee is attached hereto as Appendix A. Set forth below is the current membership of each committee of the Board, with the number of meetings held during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, in parentheses.

Table of Contents

Executive Committee (none)	Audit Committee (six)	Compensation and Human Resources Committee (three)	Strategy Committee (four)	Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (four)
Joseph P. Keithley (Chairman)	R. Elton White (Chairman)	Brian R. Bachman (Chairman)	Dr. N. Mohan Reddy (Chairman)	James T. Bartlett (Chairman)
James T. Bartlett	James T. Bartlett	Leon J. Hendrix, Jr.	Brian R. Bachman	Brian R. Bachman
Leon J. Hendrix, Jr.	William J. Hudson, Jr.	Dr. N. Mohan Reddy	James T. Bartlett	Leon J. Hendrix, Jr.
	Barbara V. Scherer	Barbara V. Scherer	James B. Griswold	William J. Hudson, Jr.
		R. Elton White	Leon J. Hendrix, Jr.	
			William J. Hudson, Jr.	
			Joseph P. Keithley	
			Barbara V. Scherer	
			R. Elton White	

The Board has determined that all of the Directors, except for Messrs. Keithley and Griswold, are independent directors within the meaning of New York Stock Exchange listing standards. All of the member of the Board's Audit Committee, Compensation and Human Resources Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are independent directors.

The non-management directors meet in executive session without management during each board meeting. The non-management directors have appointed James T. Bartlett to preside over these executive sessions.

The Executive Committee is authorized to exercise all of the powers of the Board of Directors between meetings of the Board of Directors. All actions of the Executive Committee are reported to the Board of Directors at its first meeting following such action or actions.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in overseeing (i) the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, (ii) the Company s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (iii) the Company s independent auditor s qualifications and independence, and (iv) the performance of the Company s internal audit function and independent auditors. The Board has determined that each member of the Audit Committee is an audit committee financial expert within the meaning of Item 401 of Regulation S-K under the federal securities laws.

The Compensation and Human Resources Committee responsibilities are to review and approve the goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of the Company s Chief Executive Officer, other executive officers and other employees who report to the Company s Chief Executive Officer, and to amend these goals and objectives if the Committee deems it appropriate. Toward that end, the committee oversees all compensation, equity and employee benefit plans and payments. The Committee is also responsible for periodically evaluating compensation for members of the Board of Directors and its committees and to review and approve changes in compensation and plans relating to director compensation.

The Strategy Committee is responsible for ensuring that management has in place strategies and action plans as well as useful planning and control systems to enable the Company to meet its objectives.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in identifying individuals qualified to become Board members; to recommend board committee structure, membership and operations; to develop and recommend to the Board a set of effective corporate governance policies and procedures; and to lead the Board in its annual review of the Board s performance.

The charter of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee provides that the Committee shall make recommendations to the Board regarding director nominations, including director candidates recommended by shareholders. If a shareholder wishes to recommend a candidate to the Board, the shareholder should send the name of the recommended candidate, with a description of the candidate s qualifications, to: Chairman, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, c/o Marcia Parker, Keithley Instruments, Inc., 28775 Aurora Road, Cleveland, Ohio 44139. The Committee has not established specific minimum qualifications a candidate must have in order to be recommended by the Committee. However, in determining qualifications for new directors, the Committee will periodically review Board succession plans, evaluate the experience and attributes needed to fulfill its responsibilities and work with the Chief Executive Officer to identify management s needs for advice and counsel. In connection with the nomination of a director,

8

Table of Contents

candidates recommended by shareholders and the Board of Directors will be considered. Additionally, the Nominating and Governance Committee may supplement this pool through the retention of a board search consultant, which will identify and recruit potential directors.

Directors who are not employees of the Company receive an annual fee of \$10,000 paid in five installments. Directors receive an additional \$1,000 for each Board meeting attended and, unless Chairman of a committee, \$750 for each committee meeting attended, except for Executive Committee meetings for which no additional fees are paid. The Audit Committee Chairman is paid \$2,500 for presiding as Chairman at a committee meeting. The Compensation and Human Resources Committee Chairman is paid \$1,500 for presiding as Chairman at a committee meeting. The Strategy Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chairmen are paid \$1,250 for presiding as Chairman at a committee meeting. Directors may defer their fees under the Keithley Instruments, Inc. 1996 Outside Directors Deferred Stock Plan.

Additionally, under the 1997 Director s Stock Option Plan, nonemployee Directors are automatically granted an option to purchase 10,000 Common Shares at the close of each annual meeting of shareholders. The exercise price for each option is the fair market value of a Common Share on the date such option is granted as defined by the Plan. The Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, grant additional options under the Plan for newly elected nonemployee Directors. The 1997 Director s Stock Option Plan will expire by its terms on February 15, 2007.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Company has a Code of Ethics that applies to all employees, executive officers and Directors of the Company, including the Company s principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. The Code of Ethics includes provisions covering compliance with laws and regulations, insider trading practices, conflicts of interest, confidentiality, protection and proper use of Company assets, accounting and recordkeeping, fair competition and fair dealing, business gifts and entertainment, payments to government personnel, and the reporting of illegal or unethical behavior. The Code of Ethics is posted on the Company s website and is available in print to any shareholder submitting a request to the Company c/o Marcia Parker, Keithley Instruments, Inc., 28775 Aurora Road, Cleveland, Ohio 44139. Any waiver of any provision of the code granted to an executive officer or Director may only be made by the Board of Directors or a Committee of the Board authorized to do so and will be promptly disclosed on the Company s website at www.keithley.com.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND RELATED INFORMATION

Compensation and Human Resources Committee Report

The Company s Board of Directors has delegated to the Compensation and Human Resources Committee (the Committee) the responsibility of evaluating and recommending for formal board approval the amounts of compensation paid to the Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers. The Committee is composed entirely of independent Directors.

The guiding philosophy of the Company s executive compensation program is to attract, motivate and retain highly qualified senior managers to direct and grow the Company. Information is gathered to provide guidelines on pay for comparable positions in comparable industries. The pay of the officers is managed to assure that, in general, it falls between 80% and 120% of median compensation for similar positions at peer companies as determined by the Committee s compensation consultant.

The program provides for a salary that is based upon individual performance, an annual bonus that is based upon the attainment of performance goals, and long-term incentives in the form of stock options.

The salary for each executive officer is set based upon data from the Committee s compensation consultant, Mellon Human Resources and Investor Solutions. The information used is the range of salaries paid to individuals who hold similar positions or have similar responsibilities within companies or divisions of companies of similar size in the electronics industry some, but not all of which are in the S&P Information Technology Sector Index used in the performance graph on page 14.

9

Table of Contents

The magnitude of the annual bonus that is paid to each officer is determined as follows. First, the targeted amount of bonus to be paid annually is determined through the use of survey information based on a percentage of annual salary. An appropriate mix of corporate financial measures are then determined and a payout schedule is set based upon attainment of the performance goals. The magnitude of these performance goals is set in conjunction with the Board Compensation Committee to reflect the marketplace conditions and an expectation of continuous improvement. The bonus payment begins at an acceptable level of attainment of financial goals.

Non-qualified Stock Options (NSOs) are used to provide long-term incentives to officers and other key employees. Each year a stock option grant is made for each officer based upon competitive market practices. Generally, options vest in four years and expire in ten years from the date of grant and have an option price equal to the market price at the time of grant.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation

The Compensation and Human Resources Committee determined Mr. Keithley s compensation for fiscal 2004 based upon a number of criteria. The major factors that influenced the Committee s decisions were an evaluation by the Committee of Mr. Keithley s performance in 2004 relative to specific goals, the median pay levels for CEOs in electronics firms of similar size, the performance of the Company in sales and level of profits, and the general state of the electronic test and measurement industry.

Mr. Keithley s annual salary for fiscal 2004 returned to \$400,000 in January 2004. This salary was established for 2003, but in May 2003 Mr. Keithley voluntarily reduced his salary 10% until the company had two consecutive profitable quarters. Mr. Keithley s base salary is comparable to others in equivalent positions in the electronics industry. Mr. Keithley received a bonus for fiscal 2004 of \$587,774, based upon the Company s performance relative to sales growth and return on assets goals.

Compensation and Human Resources Committee
Brian R. Bachman, Chairman
R. Elton White
N. Mohan Reddy
Leon J. Hendrix
Barbara V. Sheerer

Employment Agreements with Named Executive Officers of the Company. Pursuant to an employment agreement which was entered into on September 26, 1988, Joseph P. Keithley is required to be compensated at the rate of at least \$120,000 per year initially for a five-year period which ended September 26, 1993 and is automatically renewable for one-year periods thereafter. Pursuant to an employment agreement which was entered into on April 7, 1994, Mr. Plush is required to be compensated at the rate of at least \$109,800 per year. Mr. Plush is agreement initially covered a three-year period and is automatically renewable for one-year periods thereafter.

Retirement Plan. The Company s United States pension plan provides retirement benefits to eligible participants who terminate employment at or after age 65, or who terminate employment before age 65 with at least five years of service. Benefits commence after termination of employment, but generally not before age 55. Retirement benefits are computed on the basis of pension credits for each year of the employee s service. Generally, an employee s pension credits will be equal to the sum of (i) 0.9% of the employee s high five-year average annual compensation, not in excess of the employee s Social Security covered compensation (as defined by Section 401(I)(5)(E) of the Internal Revenue Code) as of September 30, 1999, plus 1.5% of such average annual compensation in excess of covered compensation, with such sum multiplied by the employee s years of credited service (up to 30 years) through September 30, 1999; plus (ii) 1.2% of the employee s annual compensation for each plan year beginning on or after October 1, 1999. The employee s annual retirement benefit, when paid as a life annuity commencing at age 65, will equal the total of the pension credits he has earned. If the individuals listed in the compensation table were to continue to be employees until their attainment of age 65 at the rate of compensation they received during fiscal 2004, their

10

Table of Contents

annual retirement benefits would be as follows: Mr. Keithley, \$90,800; Mr. Rosica, \$20,700; Ms. Rae, \$77,900; Mr. Plush, \$64,800, and Mr. Pesec, \$75,800.

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the four most highly compensated executive officers of the Company as of September 30, 2004, for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long-Term

				Compensation Awards	
		Annual Compensation		Securities Underlying	All Other Compensation
Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Options (#)	(\$)(1)
Joseph P. Keithley	2004	\$390,000	\$587,774	70,000	\$3,242
Chairman of the Board, President	2003	\$379,584	\$	100,000	\$3,185
and Chief Executive Officer	2002	\$381,250	\$	100,000	\$5,194
Gabriel A. Rosica	2004	\$273,975	\$275,274		\$3,202
Executive Vice President	2003	\$266,542	\$		\$3,252
	2002	\$267,750	\$	30,000	\$5,173
Linda C. Rae (2)	2004	\$212,500	\$230,000	41,000	\$2,960
Senior Vice President and	2003	\$187,250	\$	50,000	\$3,068
General Manager	2002				
Mark J. Plush	2004	\$221,500	\$189,863	28,000	\$3,145
Vice President and	2003	\$219,875	\$		